184 o ‘ Economic and Social Council—Substantive session of 1993

32nd meetmg

Wednwday, 14 July 1993, at 3.30 p.m.

President: Mr. Olexandre SLIPTCHENKO (Ukraine)
_later: Mr. Martin HUSLID (Norway)

AGENDA ITEM 4

Coordination quostions (contiﬁued):

-

(a) Reports of the coordination bodies (continued)

" (c) International cooperation in the field of infor-
" matics (continued)

(d) Question of a United Nations year for toler-
ance (continued)

(e¢) Multisectoral collaboration on tobacco or
health (contznued)

Promotlon of press freedom in the world (contmued)

1. Mr. BALOCH (Observer for Pakistan) said his del-
egation hoped that more efficient coordination machin-
ery would enable ACC to focus better on the key sub-
stantive issues facing the international community, to
which the United Nations system was called upon to re-
spond in a well-coordinated and effective manner. That
was perhaps the most important question the system
needed to address.

2. His delegation attached great importance to the re-
sponse of ACC to the special economic problems of
countries affected by the sanctions against Iraq, as well
as the measures taken to implement Agenda 21 and the
Cartagena Commitment' adopted by UNCTAD VIII. His
delegation was deeply concerned at the signs, throughout
the United Nations system, of declining resources, which
could undermine the system’s technical capacity and its
support for developing countries. To survive the finan-
cial crunch, components of the system would have to
learn to work together to achieve the common goals set
by the international community.

3. With regard to the Secretary-General’s report on in-
ternational cooperation in the field of informatics
(E/1993/86), his delegation’s main concern was to
achieve the harmonization and improvement of the

United Nations information systems needed for optimal

utilization and accessibility by all States Members. Some
initial steps had been taken but much needed to be done.
His delegation had taken careful note of the review being

I See 31st meeting, note 1.

E/1993/SR.32

undertaken by ACC and felt that not enough consultation
was taking place among Governments of Member States
and those responsible for the review. He urged that regu-
lar, systematic consultation should take place before the

_current review was completed and its outcome submitted

for approval of ACC. As the report pointed out, a num-
ber of steps could be taken to improve States Members’
access to information within the United Nations system
in the public domain, even before a new structure for the
Advisory Committee for the Coordination of Informa-
tion Systems and the International Computing Centre
was developed. His delegation hoped that the Secretary-
General, in cooperation with the executive heads of the
system, would ensure that the matter received high prior-
ity in response to the Council’s de01s10ns

4. Ms. BIRGIN (Australia), referring to the report of
the Director-General of WHO (E/1993/56, annex) said
that many agencies had focused attention on the health
costs of tobacco consumption and that WHO had alerted
member States to the dangers. The World Health Assem-

bly, in a number of resolutions, had urged member States

to adopt comprehensive strategies of tobacco control.
Australia’s national strategies, including bans on tobacco
advertising and promotion, workplace smoking bans in
the governmental and non-governmental - sectors, na-
tional anti-smoking education programmes and tobacco
taxation measures. The World Bank had adopted a pol-
icy of providing no new loans for the growing or manu-
facture of tobacco

5. Some natlons, however, eamned significant foreign
exchange from tobacco production, which also provided
employment opportunities and government revenue. A
multisectoral approach, therefore, was the best approach
to the task of weighing the apparent economic benefits
of tobacco production against the costs of its consump-
tion. A successful international tobacco strategy must -
aim at reducing the global demand for tobacco products,
with a consequent reduction in supply requirements—an
approach consistent with the effective - international

strategles to deal with illicit drug trafficking.

6. The number of smokers had diminished s1gmﬁcantly
in Australia, from 72 per cent of adult men in 1945 to -
30 per.cent in 1989, and from 31 per cent of adult

- women in 1980 to 27 per cent in 1989. Domestic



32nd meeting (Other meetings)—14 July 1993 185

tobacco-production profitability had declined also, but
increasing demand from other nations, particularly in
South-East Asia, might keep production at current levels.

7. Emphasis on economic aspects could focus on the
costs to the community stemming from sickness and
death, fires and other tobacco-related accidents, absen-
teeism and the effects of passive smoking, as well as on
environmental damage such as soil degradatlon and the
effects of pesticides. .

8. Multisectoral collaboration must involve all relevant
international agencies, and the developed nations must
cooperate closely with developing countries in applying
suitable policies and strategies. It would be useful to es-
tablish a focal point within the United Nations to con-
sider the multisectoral implications of tobacco consump-
tion and production, with a view to, studying the range of
issues and developing a negotiated strategy. There would
have -to be negotiation with relevant international
organizations on the full range of socio-economic issues,
in order to put appropriate strategies in place. Reports on
the effectiveness of a multisectoral approach should be
provided, through the focal pomt to the Council on a
-regular basis.

9. Mr.. KEDZIA (Poland) said that his Government
thanked the Secretary-General for focusing, in his report
on international cooperation in the field of informatics
(E/1993/86), on the continued flow .of information to
States Members concerning the Organization’s activities,
user-friendly access to information systems, and train-
.ing. The report rightly stressed the importance of a com-
prehensive, integrated approach. The whole area of
United Nations activities should be covered. It was strik-
ing, however, that, only a few weeks after the World
Conference on Human Rights, which had stressed the
need for coordinated activities in that field and for fur-
ther promotion of and education on human rights; the or-
ganizing of information on human rights seemed ne-
glected. Since unlimited access to information was an
obvious prerequisite, his delegation urged the competent
United Nations organs to adopt a comprehensive infor-
mation programme on human rights, which should in-
clude the establishment of a generally and easily acces-
sible database at Geneva as well as the publication of
human rights documentation.on CD-ROM. Easy,. inex-
pensive access by all States Members to information was
essential to the equality of Members, which was a funda-
mental principle of a democratic world order. An -effi-

. cient United Nations, effort in the field of informatics
was.a matter of high political priority.

10. With regard to the question of a United Nations
year for tolerance, the report of the Director-General of
UNESCO (E/1993/89, annex) described tolerance as a
controversial .concept. Indeed, in the debate in the
French National Assembly on the Declaration of the
Rights of Man, Mirabeau had opposed the draft, prefer-
ring a proclamation of religious freedom instead of toler-
ance. As he had pointed out, if there was a state of toler-
ance there was bound to be an authority that tolerated

but could also refuse to do so. Tolerance alone was not
enough, and might even be contrary to the rule of law. If
a deed was punishable, the State administering justice

“-could refrain from pumshlng it only in cases clearly

identified by law.

11. Tolerance, therefore, could not replece freedom in
relations between the State and the individual. In Poland,
before the political upheaval of 1989, it had been gov-

. ernment policy not to interfere greatly with freedom of

speech and print, but the censorship system had existed
as before. Censorship might be slack in a situation of tol-
erance, but in a state of freedom it did not exist at all.

12, Tolerance should not be perceived as a political
category only. Viewed as a human characteristic, toler-
ance was an indispensable element of human rights cul-
ture. Without tolerance in relations among and between
peoples, there could be no genuine observance of human
rights—a fact recognized in the preamble to the Charter
of the United Nations and in article 26 of the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights. Tolerance was especially
relevant in certain areas, particularly in regard to free-
dom of religion, racial discrimination and press freedom.
His delegation welcomed the proclamation of 1995 as
the year for tolerance. It should be a year not of celebra-
tion but of concerted action by Governments, the United
Nations system and intergovernmental and non-
governmental organizations. In that light, his delegation
supported the report of the Director-General of
UNESCO, and hoped that the outlined programme for

-the year would contribute significantly to the implemen-

tation of the Vienna Declaration and Programme of Ac-
tion (A/CONF.157/23) of the World Conference on Hu- -
man Rights.

13. Mr. RAS-WORK (Intemational Te'lec‘ommunica-
tion Union) said that ITU, as the United Nations
specialized agency in the fleld of telecommunications,
was particularly pleased that the Council had included
international cooperation in the field of 1nformatlcs in its
agenda

14. The worldwide ITU information network for its
members, the Telecommunication Information Exchange

‘Service, provided remote consultation and electronic

transfer of documents and an interactive electronic ex-
change of information. Geneva-based missions accred-
ited to the United Nations had been offered the possibil-
ity of connection to the network. A

15. In deciding to establish a senior-level task force on

United Nations information systems, ACC had requested
ITU to assume the role of lead agency. The task force
was composed of senior-level information policy makers
of the United Nations system, as distinct from informa-
tion technology specialists. Having reviewed its man-
date, it had highlighted five major components: general
requirements for the dissemination and exchange of ap-
propriate information between Member States .and the
United Nations and its specialized agencies; ways and
means to harmonize and improve the United Nations in-




186 . Economic and Sécial Council—Substantive session of 1993

- formation - network system; the status of information
technology in the system, and related telecommunica-
tions infrastructure; the roles and structures of the Advi-
sory Committee for the.Coordination of Information
Systems and the International Computing Centre; and
the information needs of ACC and its standing commit-
tees. The task force would submit a report in October on
the urgent aspects of its work programme, and expected
to submit its final report by April 1994. With regard to
the comments made by the observer for Pakistan, he felt
sure that the task force would arrange in advance for all

"necessary coordination.

16. TTU was conscious of the importance of an up-to-
date, reliable communications network to all Member
States, organizations and the private sector. It would do
its utmost to provide the Council, through ACC, with
comprehensive practical recommendations for imple-
mentatlon

17. Mr. PATNAIK (India) said that his delegation wel-
comed the CPC report on the first part of its thirty-third
- session (A/48/16, part I) but regretted that CPC had been
hampered by the late appearance and inadequacy of the
documentation on coordination. He hoped that ACC
would pay due attention to reporting at the next session.
His delegation, which had participated actively in the
work of CPC, stressed the latter’s role in coordinating
the work of the United Nations system, and welcomed
the CPC conclusions and recommendations, which it
hoped the Council would adopt:

18. The CPC evaluation exercise was most useful. For
instance, in the field of human rights, CPC had recom-
mended the establishment of a database. It was important
to be guided, in that regard, by the principle of indivis-
ibility of all human rights, including civil, political, eco-
nomic and social. Similarly, with regard to the recom-
mendations relating to UNHCR, it was important that

the latter’s activities should be confined to its mandate '

:-and not lead to an undue strain on its resources.

19. His delegation stressed the need to strengthen the
role of CPC in system-wide coordination, in the context
not only of the programme budget but also of the
medium-term plan.

20. .Mr. DELACROIX (France) referred to the resolu-
tion of the UNESCO General Conference on the promo-
tion of press freedom in the world (E/1993/58, annex).
As the Windhoek Declaration affirmed, the establish-
ment of a free press was vital for a democratic society
and-its economic development. His delegation fully sup-
ported the proposal that the General Assembly should be
" invited to have 3 May declared World Press Freedom
Day, and would be prepared to co-sponsor a draft resolu-
tion to that effect. ‘

21. Mr. STOBY (Department for Policy Coordination
and Sustainable Development), referring to the report of
the Secretary-General on international cooperation in the
field of informatics (E/1993/86), said that he had taken

careful note of the comments by the observer for Paki-
stan, and of his concern that not enough consultations
were taking place among those responsible for carrying
out the review and Governments of Member States. He
wished to point out, in that regard, that the decision to
hold such a policy review had been taken by ACC only
in April 1993. As mentioned in the ACC report, and in
his statement to the Council the previous day (31st meet-
ing), there had been an immediate report back to the
Council, with an indication of the main policy issues
which had emerged from the ACC task force’s first
meeting, including an indication when the task force
would be meeting again and when it expected to con-

‘clude its work. Therefore he was somewhat taken aback

to hear that there had not been enough consultation in

“the matter. In fact, the opportunity had been seized of in-
forming the Council, at its current session, of the action

ACC was taking; in particular, the opportunity for dia-

~ logue with Member States and members of the Council

was welcome. The current session was itself a welcome
opportunity for consultations, and he looked forward to
any views which-members of the Council, or the Council
itself, might have on the review initiated by ACC.

22. Mrs. FOURNIER (United Nations Educational,
Scientific and Cultural Organization) welcomed the Po-
lish representative’s statement on the need to reflect on
the concept of tolerance. She fully agreed that the latter
could not replace the concept of freedom, and that an in-
tegrated approach was essential. .

23. Mr. ROCHON (World Health Organization) on be-
half of the Director-General of WHO, thanked members

-of the Council for their support of the Director-General’s

report (E/1993/56, annex). In all cases, WHO would
continue its intensive work to combat the use of tobacco,
including support for activities at the national level. An
integrated approach to the problem by the entire United
Nations system was essential. Experience had shown
that uncoordmated action was not enough. :

24. The PRESIDENT announced that the Council had
concluded its general discussion of items 4 (a), (¢), (d)
and (e).

Mr. Huslid, Vice-President, took the Chair.

AGENDA ITEM 2

Coordination of the policies and activities of the
specialized agencies and other bodies of the United
Nations system related to the following themes
(contmued*)

) Coordmatlon of the activities of the United
Nations system in the fields of preventive action

* Resumed from the 23rd meeting.



32nd meeting‘(»Other meetings)—14 July 1993 . 187

and intensification of the struggle against ma-

laria and diarrhoeal diseases, in particular chol-
era (continued*)

25. The PRESIDENT drew attention to the draft
agreed conclusions in document E/1993/L.26.

26. In paragraph 10, the beginning of the last sentence
should read ‘‘United Nations organs and organizations’’.

27. - The text of the draft agreed conclusions was the re-
sult of considerable work and many revisions. He noted
that in the penultimate paragraph, the Secretary-General
was requested to submit a report the development of
. which should be monitored by the Council, on the imple-
mentation of the recommendations to improve coordina-
tion in the prevention and control of malaria and diar-
rhoeal diseases. He also drew attention to the statement
in the final paragraph that, in returning to the subject in
1994, the Council should exert more fully its coordinat-
ing role as defined in the Charter of the United Nations.

28. Mr. PATNAIK (India) said that there were still dif-
ferences about the precise meaning of the agreed conclu-
sions. In normal United Nations processes, there were
_ two ends of the spectrum when it was a question of
adopting recommendations of that nature. On the one
hand, there were presidential statements of the kind the
President of the Council frequently issued under his
authority. At the other end of the spectrum, there were
resolutions which had been carefully negotiated between
delegations. In the middle, there was the innovation of
the agreed conclusions, which his delegation considered
to be more than a presidential summary of statements
‘and less than a resolution. However, their exact legal
status had not yet been defined. In his delegation’s view,
they were more similar to the presidential statements is-
sued in the Security Council.

29. Subject to that basic interpretation, his delegation
would be happy'to adopt the draft conclusions. They
- were a clear message to the agencies involved that, when
they reported to the Council the following year, it must

. be on the basis of those conclusions.

30. The PRESIDENT said that if he heard no objec-
tion, he would take it that the Council decided to adopt
the conclusions.

It was so decided.

31. Mr. ARELLANO (Mexico) expressed his delega-
tion’s appreciation of the efforts made by the President
to arrive at the conclusions reached. However, he agreed
with the point made by the Indian representative. He
recognized that the decision had been taken by the Coun-
cil at its current -session and that new machinery had

* Resumed from the 23rd meeting.

been developed to avoid spending hours and days dis-
cussing paragraphs and- becoming involved in time-
consuming work. However; the Council might be falling
into a new pitfall by adopting a series of paragraphs

which were mostly declarative and some of which had -

no s1gn1ﬁcance He would like, for example, to know the
meaning of paragraph 6.

32. At a future session, the Council should consider re-
turning to the previous procedure involving resolutions
and decisions which were quite clear and avoid produc-
ing lengthy documents that were mostly declarative.

33. The PRESIDENT agreed that the Council should
give thought to ways in which it could improve the
process. In the present case, however, it had not been
easy. Many. proposals had been made and in some cases
delegations had not pressed their texts. However, he
recognized that, in future, efforts should be made to ar-
rive at a shorter and more action-oriented process.

34. "Mr. STOBY (Department for Policy Cooperation
and Sustainable Development) said, with regard to the
second sentence of paragraph 19, that while it was not
quite clear what the word “‘monitor’’ involved, particu-
larly in terms of the development of the report, he
thought that it would be useful to place on record the
consistent position of the Secretary-General on that

_ question. Once a request was made to the Secretary-
"General to prepare a report, the matter came within the

ambit of the Secretariat. The report was prepared in the

" internal processes and submitted to Member States in ac-

cordance with the particular request. The indication
given in the document about monitoring related perhaps
to earlier decisions taken by the Council suggesting that
the Bureau should monitor the timeliness of the prepara-
tion of the report. However, the substantive process of
preparing the report was of course an entirely internal
matter.

35. The PRESIDENT, referring to the point raised by
the Indian representative, said that he had discussed the
matter with Mr, Stoby and members of the Secretariat.

On the operational side, there should be no doubt about

the value and force of the conclusions. With regard to
the substance, he was confident that the conclusions

. served their purpose.

'36. With respect to the formulation of the dochment

the Secretariat would prepare an introductory text, stat-
ing that the Council had decided to adopt the following

agreed conclusions containing specific recommendations

relating to coordination in the struggle against malaria
and diarrhoeal diseases, in particular cholera. The Coun-
cil was adopting the conclusions with the assent of all
members. There was no doubt that they were clear direc-
tives to the organs of the United Nations system. -

The meeting rose at 4.30 p.m.






